2003

Kelly Smith and Lisa Nielson v. Hales & Warner Construction : Brief of Appellant

Utah Court of Appeals

I. STATEMENT OF JURISDICTION

Pursuant to Utah R. App. P. 24(a)(4), Appellant states as follows: The Court of Appeals of Utah has appellate jurisdiction over cases transferred to the Court of Appeals from the Supreme Court. Utah Code 78-2a-3(2)(j). The Supreme Court had jurisdiction pursuant to Utah Code 78-2-2(3)(j) as this case presents an order, judgment, or decree of a court of record over which the Court of Appeals did not have original appellate jurisdiction.

II. STATEMENT OF ISSUES & STANDARD OF REVIEW

Pursuant to Utah R. App. P. 24(a)(5), Appellant states the issues presented for review, the standard for review, and demonstrates that each issue was preserved below.

With respect to Appellee Hales and Warner Construction, Inc., hereinafter "Appellee H & W", the issue presented for review is:

1. In Thompson v. Jess, 1999 Utah 22, 979 P.2d 322, 327 (Utah 1999), the Supreme Court held that a principle employer is subject to liability for injuries arising out of an independent contractor's work if the employer is "actively involved in, or asserts control over, the manner of performance of the contracted for work." The issue presented

by this appeal is whether "active participation" exists when the principal employer becomes actively involved in or exerts control over the performance and manner of the work of the contractor, or sub-contractor, or whether active participation exists only when the employer exerts control over the method and choice to engage in the specific act that results in the injury.

Citation to record showing that the issue was preserved in the trial court: Appellants preserved this issue by raising and arguing same in their Supplemental Memorandum in Opposition to Motion for Summary Judgment of the Defendant Hales & Warner Construction, Inc.'s and Supplemental Memorandum in Opposition to Motion for Summary Judgment of the Corporation of the Presiding Bishop of the Church of Jesus Christ of Latter Day Saints (alternatively referred to as "CPB"), See Record, hereinafter referred to as "R," at 884.

Standard of Review: The record of this case must be viewed in a light favorable to Appellants. Summary judgment is appropriate when there is no genuine issue of material fact and the moving party is entitled to judgment as a matter of law. Hill v. Seattle First Nat'l Bank, 827 P.2d 241 (Utah 1992); Jones v. Bountiful City Corp., 834 P.2d 556, 558 (Utah App.

1992). This Court must examine a trial court's grant of summary judgment for correctness, with "no deference to the trial court's legal conclusions." Jones, 834 P.2d at 558. This is true whether the issue presented on summary judgment is one of law or equity. See Town of Alta v. Ben Hame Corp., 836 P.2d 797 (Utah App. 1992) (applying summary judgment standard on review of an injunction); Vergote v. K Mart Corp., 158 Mich. App. 96, 404 N.W.2d 711 (Mich. App. 1987) (applying summary judgment standard on claim for specific performance). When reviewing a grant of summary judgment, the Court reviews the record, including all inferences arising therefrom, in the light most favorable to the party opposed to the motion. Hill, 827 P.2d at 242. As a matter of law, this case's entire record, including any inferences that might arise from the facts in favor of Appellant's argument, must be viewed in a light most favorable to Appellants. See Richards v. Security Pac. Nat'l Bank, 208 Utah Adv. Rep. 81, 849 P.2d 606, 608 (Utah 1993).

With respect to the Appellee CPB the issues presented for review are:

2. Whether a principle employer is subject to liability for injuries arising out of an independent contractor's work under the "retained control doctrine" by virtue of the existence of

a contract in which the principle employer retained sufficient control over the manner or method of the work, without respect to whether such contractual rights were in fact exercised.

Citation to record showing that the issue was preserved in the trial court: Appellants preserved this in the same manner as they preserved Issue No. 1 above, (by raising and arguing same in their Memorandum in Opposition to the Motions for Summary Judgment), See R. 884.

Standard of Review: The standard of review for this second issue is the same as stated above for Issue No. 1.

3. Whether the relationship of principle employer and independent contractor can exist when the principle employer possesses the right to accept or reject any subcontractor or employee selected by the purported independent contractor.

Citation to record showing that the issue was preserved in the trial court: Appellants preserved this in the same manner as they preserved Issue No. 1 above, (by raising and arguing same in their Memorandum in Opposition to the Motions for Summary Judgment), See R. 884.

Standard of Review: The standard of review for this second issue is the same as stated above for Issue No. 1.

III. STATEMENT OF THE CASE

Pursuant to Utah R. App. P. 24(a)(7), Appellant states as follows:

i. Nature of the Case: The Appellant brought a wrongful death action on behalf of its decedent Jason Smith, against the Appellee H & W and Appellee CPB. Jason Smith died on a construction site. Appellee H & W was the general contractor of the construction project, and Appellee CPB was the owner of land as well as the building that Appellees constructed.

2. Course of Proceedings: The Appellant filed its complaint. The Appellees each filed Answers. Immediately after discovery commenced, the Appellees each filed Motions for Summary Judgment. Plaintiff filed a request pursuant to Utah R. Civ. P. 56(f) to postpone consideration of the Motions, as well as substantive responses. The court granted the Rule 56(f) requests and discovery proceeded. At the conclusion of discovery the Appellees renewed their Motions for Summary Judgment and those motions were heard and decided by the Hon. Claudia Laycock of the Fourth Judicial District Court.

3. Disposition below and previously: The district court granted Appellee's respective motions for summary judgment and this appeal followed. The Appellees each filed Motions for

Summary Disposition in this Court, and each respective motion was denied by this Court.

IV. STATEMENT OF THE FACTS

Pursuant to Utah R. App. P. 24(a)(7), Appellant states as follows: The Appellee CPB entered into a contract for the construction of a house of worship known as the Highland 4 and 20 Project. Deposition of Dean Schick, hereinafter "Schick Depo," at page 9, excerpts attached as Exhibit 1 to the Addendum; Contract documents attached to the Addendum as Exhibit 2 ("Agreement"), and Exhibit 3 ("Conditions of the Contract"). There was an invitation to bid on the project and subsequently a bid opening. CPB chose Appellee H & W as general contractor for the project. Hales and Warner entered into a contract with the Appellee CPB for the construction of the Highland 4 and 20 Project. The Appellee CPB retained the right to approve or reject any subcontractor or employee engaged by Appellee H & W to complete the work or any part of the work. Conditions of the Contract, attached as Exhibit 3, at Paragraph 5.1(B) through (C), page 5 of 12, and Paragraph 6.1(A), page 6 of 12. Appellee H & W commenced work on the project.

The Appellee H & W submitted a list of subcontractors that it intended to use to perform the majority of the work required

by the project and the Appellee CPB, along with Paul Evans, the architect whom the Appellee CPB hired to assist it, reviewed the list and approved of each subcontractor. Schick Depo at pages 30,31-32, attached as Exhibit 1; Deposition of Paul Evans, hereinafter "Evans Depo," at pages 33-34, 80, excerpts attached as Exhibit 8 to the Addendum.

The subcontractor chosen for the framing of the Highland 4 and 20 project was Third Party Defendant Brent Reynolds Construction, Inc., hereinafter "BRC." BRC hired Egbert Construction to perform the actual framing, but supplied the materials necessary for the framing. See deposition of Brent Reynolds, hereinafter "Reynolds Depo," at page 8, excerpts attached as Exhibit 4 to the Addendum. Defendant BRC, in the course of the framing project, sent its own employees to assist in the framing. Reynolds Depo at page 10, attached as Exhibit 4. The Egbert Construction foreman, Ken Egbert, took direction and instruction from Brent Reynolds, President of Brent Reynolds Construction, Inc. Reynolds Depo at pages 25-27, attached as Exhibit 4. Brent Reynolds testified that H & W Superintendent Maurice Egbert continually interfered with the framing process from beginning to end, and in the event that there was a dispute with regard to framing methods or details, Brent Reynolds

instructed Ken Egbert to do it the Hales & Warner way. Reynolds Depo at pages 25-27 and 33, attached as Exhibit 4.

Appellants' decedent, Jason Smith, among others, became employed by Ken Egbert to frame the Highland 4 and 20 Project. Appellee CPB knew that Egbert Construction was the primary framer on the Highland 4 and 20 Project and did not object or disapprove of the use of Egbert construction. On August 13, 1999, while framing a wall, Jason Smith was killed when a wall fell upon him and crushed his skull.

The Appellee H & W was actively involved in the framing process, asserted control over the framing process, and asserted control over the manner of performance of the contracted for work. The following facts in the record demonstrate this active participation and control:

a. Brent Reynolds, President of Third Party Defendant Brent

Reynolds Construction, Inc., stated as follows to Clifford

Hales, President of Appellee Hales & Warner:

From the very beginning, your superintendent, [Maurice Egbert], interfered with the framing process, telling [the framers] that they couldn't do it [the] way they were used to framing and caused the framers many problems, costing extra time and material. This interference continued through out the framing of the building...

See Letter from Defendant BRC to Appellee H & W, Attached as Exhibit 5 to the Addendum.

- b. Brent Reynolds testified about at least three different specific instances where H & W manifested control over the work of Egbert Construction's employees. Reynolds Depo at pages 46-47, attached as Exhibit 4.
- c. Brent Reynolds stated that Maurice Egbert, the superintendent of the project for Appellee H & W Construction, Inc., wouldn't let his men frame walls the way they wanted to frame them. Reynolds Depo, at page 25, attached as Exhibit 4;
- d. Brent Reynolds stated that he, or Ken Egbert, (a framer more particularly identified below, with little or no relationship to Maurice Egbert), told Appellee H & W that it was not effective to frame the building the way that Appellee H & W wanted to frame it, but Appellee H & W made Brent Reynolds Construction, Inc., and Egbert, frame the building "the Hales & Warner way." Reynolds Depo at pp 25-26, attached as Exhibit 4;
- e. Brent Reynolds said that Appellee H & W would not let him and/or Ken Egbert frame the building in the **manner** they wanted to frame the building. See Reynolds Depo at 25, attached as Exhibit 4, (emphasis supplied);
- f. Appellee H & W began interfering with the framing process on the day that the framing began. See Reynolds Depo at page 29, attached as Exhibit 4;

- g. Brent Reynolds could not recall whether there was a single aspect of the framing process with which Appellee H & W did **not** interfere. See Reynolds Depo at page 28, attached as Exhibit 4, (emphasis supplied);
- h. The Appellee H & W's superintendent, Maurice Egbert, stated that he "found problems" with the framing, including the heights of walls, and that he made the framers tear one wall apart and rebuild it the way Appellee H & W wanted it built. See Deposition of Joel Warner, hereinafter "Warner Depo," at pages 49-50, excerpts attached as Exhibit 6 to the Addendum; Deposition of Maurice Egbert, hereinafter "Egbert Depo," at page 56, excerpts attached as Exhibit 7 to the Addendum.
- i. H & W Superintendent Maurice Egbert testified how he became especially watchful of the framers' work and directly ordered much correction for the work of all of the framing employees. Egbert Depo at pages 56-57, 65-66, 69, 70-71, 72-74, 76-77, 79, attached as Exhibit 7. Maurice Egbert says that several times he would find error in the framers' work, and order them to redo the job the way the way H & W wanted. Id., at 70-71.
- j. During Egbert Construction's first day on the job site, H & W's Joel Warner questioned Ken Egbert at length about his work experience, framing ability, his crew and all other aspects of

his ability to do the framing job. Warner Depo at pages 39-42, attached as Exhibit 6.

k. H & W's superintendent (Maurice Egbert) learned that the framers had no experience framing churches, and this is why the framers got behind schedule. Maurice Egbert Depo at page 56, attached as Exhibit 7.

l. Maurice admits talking to Ken Egbert about framing and learning that Egbert Construction was an inexperienced company, and he therefore watched the framers very closely. Maurice Egbert Depo at 76-77, attached as Exhibit 7. Maurice Egbert also told Joel Warner about the framers inexperience and errors, and Joel Warner then told Maurice to closely watch the framers and to check their work. Id. at 79.

m. Joel Warner alleged that the Appellee CPB, through its architect, Paul Evans, instructed Appellee H & W to tell the framers to build the wall to a specified height. See Warner Depo at 46, attached as Exhibit 6.

n. The architect, Paul Evans, testified that he never observed any walls that needed to be torn down and did not give any instruction to destroy any walls. Evans Depo at page 48, attached as Exhibit 8.

- o. The architect, Paul Evans, admits receiving information about interference by H & W into the framing process. Evans Depo at pages 69-70, attached as Exhibit 8. Evans read H & W's daily reports and was aware of H & W's interference into the framing process, which he reported to CPB. Evans Depo at pages 63-72, attached as Exhibit 8.
- p. Dean Schick, an employee of the Appellee CPB, also stated that nothing was installed incorrectly on the project. Schick Depo at page 24, attached as Exhibit 1.
- q. Michel Lewis was an Egbert Construction employee and fellow wall-lifter with Jason Smith. Michael Lewis admits that Egbert Construction employees were supposed to wear hard hats, but nobody corrected them on their decision to not wear the hats. Deposition of Michael Lewis, hereinafter "Lewis Depo," at pages 17-18, excerpts attached as Exhibit 19 to the Addendum. Jason Smith died partly as a result of not wearing a hard hat. Mr. Lewis states that Jason Smith was never trained on how to do anything, and was just told to start performing dangerous work without any supervision or training. Lewis Depo at pages 24-25, attached as Exhibit 19. H & W's Maurice Egbert gave daily orders to all the framers. Lewis Depo at page 54, attached as Exhibit 19.

r. H & W bears responsibility for Jason Smith's death because aside from manifesting control over all aspects of the framing process that caused the death of Jason Smith, H & W held the power to stop workers from working if they were too young or inexperienced. Maurice Egbert Depo at pages 73-74, attached as Exhibit 7. Jason Smith was too young and inexperienced for the job site. Lewis Depo at pages 24-25, attached as Exhibit 19. When Jason Smith suffered his injury and death, it was Maurice Egbert who called for 911. Lewis Depo at pages 12-13, attached as Exhibit 19.

s. H & W's VP Joel Warner admits that H & W general contractor had a duty to keep a safe and clean site. Warner Depo at pages 84-85, attached as Exhibit 6.

t. Appellee H & W told the framers (i) how many men to employ, (ii) told the framers the time frame within which they had to complete, or substantially complete, the framing, and (iii) dictated the experience level of the men hired to actually do the framing. This assertion is supported as by the following:

1. On August 11, 1999, Clifford Hales, President of the Appellee H & W, sent a letter to Brent Reynolds which stated as follows:

...You promised to have 12 men on the job. This has not happened. If you continue with the same number of framers,

you will not meet the 7 week framing schedule. We feel you need to immediately increase the number of framers, and provide proper supervision so as to meet the 7 week framing schedule. Please provide us a written framing schedule outlining manpower and target dates such as wall framing, roof framing, completion, etc.

See Letter dated August 11, 1999, attached to the Addendum as Exhibit 9; (Also identified as Deposition Exhibit 34).

2. What Appellee H & W meant by "proper supervision" was that they wanted "experienced" men/framers. Warner Depo at page 79, attached as Exhibit 6 .

3. On August 25, 1999, Clifford Hales again made the following statement in a letter to Brent Reynolds:

This is a follow up to the letter dated August 11, 1999. You still have not had 12 men on the job as promised, and the job is getting further behind. Therefore, you are hereby notified that you are in breech [sic] of [our agreement]. Specifically, you have failed to employ sufficient competent help to complete the work in a reasonable time...Please...have sufficient men on the job site (12 or more men) by August 27, 1999, and continue to have sufficient men on each job day thereafter.

See Letter dated August 25, 1999, attached to the Addendum as Exhibit 10; (Also identified as Deposition Exhibit 35).

4. Appellee H & W also gave oral instructions to Brent Reynolds to put 12 or more framers on the job. Warner Depo at page 32, attached as Exhibit 6.

5. Appellee H & W, through Joel Warner, controlled the time schedules for the construction project. Warner Depo at pages

18-19, attached as Exhibit 6. Thus, Joel Warner controlled the time for beginning and completing the framing.

6. The contract between Appellee H & W and Brent Reynolds Construction, Inc., did not provide for a specific number of men (framers) to be on site. Warner Depo at 32, attached as Exhibit 6.

Because Appellee H & W actively participated in, and controlled the framing work, Appellee H & W is liable to Appellants for the injuries arising from the work. Appellee CPB is liable to the same extent as Appellee H & W.

V. SUMMARY OF THE ARGUMENT

Pursuant to Utah R. App. P. 24(a)(8), Appellants state as follows: The district court erred when it granted the Appellee H & W's Motion for Summary Judgment because Appellee H & W, the principle employer/general contractor, actively involved itself in, and asserted control over, the manner of performance of the contracted for work of its independent contractor, Brent Reynolds Construction, Inc. Appellee H & W is therefore subject to liability for the damages suffered by Plaintiff, which are injuries arising out of the independent contractor's, Brent Reynolds Construction, Inc.'s, work. The district court erroneously interpreted Thompson v. Jess, 1999 Utah 22, 979 P.2d

322 (Utah 1999) in a narrow and restrictive fashion. It imposed a standard not required by Utah Law and granted the motions because Appellant failed to demonstrate that one or both Appellee's were on site assisting, instructing or directing Appellants' decedent at the time he was killed. Thompson does not impose such onerous requirements.

The district court erred when it granted the Appellee CPB's Motion for Summary Judgment because the Appellee CPB was liable under the retained control doctrine as defined in Thompson. Appellee H & W did not have an independent contractor relationship with respect to Appellee CPB because Appellee CPB retained sufficient control over the manner and/or method of the work to be performed by Appellee H & W. Because Appellee CPB held an employer/employee relationship with Appellee H & W, it became liable to the same extent as Appellee H & W.

Regardless of the retained control doctrine, Appellee H & W was an employee of Appellee CPB, and not an independent contractor because Appellee CPB had the contractual right to accept or reject any subcontractor or employee selected by Appellee H & W. Pursuant to Ludlow v. Industrial Commission, 65 Utah 168, 179, 235 P. 884, 888 (Utah 1925), and Lodge v. Industrial Commission, 562 P.2d 227, 228 (Utah 1977), no

independent contractor relationship can exist under these circumstances.

Thus, Appellee H & W is liable to the Appellants because they actively participated in the framing process. Appellee CPB is vicariously liable to the Appellants by virtue of the acts and omissions of its employee Appellee H & W.

VI. ARGUMENT AND CITATION TO AUTHORITY

Pursuant to Utah R. App. P. 24(a)(9), Appellant states as follows:

1. Appellees H & W and CPB are liable under the retained control doctrine because one or both were actively involved in, and asserted control over, the manner of the performance of the framing.

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