2003

Kelly Smith, Lisa Nielsen, and Jason Kelly Smith v.  
Hales & Warner Construction, Inc., and the  
Corporation of the Presiding Bishop of the Church  
of Jesus Christ of Latter Day Saints : Brief of  
Appellee

Utah Court of Appeals

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

#### **IV. SUMMARY OF ARGUMENTS**

Point I of Hales & Warner’s argument section points out that Hales & Warner did not owe Jason Smith a duty under the “retained control” exception to the general rule of non-liability. Thompson v. Jess, 1999 UT 22 expressly states that the “retained control” exception requires that the general contractor (Hales & Warner) exert affirmative control over the “the injury-causing aspect” of Jason Smith’s work. Hales & Warner did not exert

affirmative control over the “injury-causing aspect” of Jason Smith’s work.

In Point II, Hales & Warner points out that the court should affirm based upon the Plaintiffs’ stipulation that if the standard in Thompson v. Jess, requires Hales & Warner to exert affirmative control over the “injury-causing aspect of the work,” then Smiths “lose.” The Thompson v. Jess decision clearly indicates that one must affirmatively exert control over the injury-causing aspect of the work for there to be duty.

In Point III, Hales & Warner points out that in the initial oral argument hearing before the trial court, Smiths’ counsel stipulated that the applicable standard required the affirmative exertion of control over “the injury-causing” aspect of the work. (It was not until after Smith’s counsel had conducted additional discovery and saw that he could not meet that standard, that Smiths’ counsel changed his position at a second hearing, and argued that a broader standard applied.) However, when one combines the stipulation made on the record to the trial court in the first hearing, with the stipulation referred to above in Point II made to the trial court on the record in the second hearing, it appears that the Smiths have stipulated “away” their case.

In Point IV, Hales & Warner points out that Smiths cannot meet their burden of establishing that Hales & Warner “breached” any duty claimed to have been owed Jason Smith.

In Point V, Hales & Warner points out that Smiths cannot meet their burden of showing the element of “causation,” (i.e. that Hales & Warner breached a duty that caused Jason Smith’s injury.)

In Point VI, although Smiths only assert liability against CPB relating thereto, Hales & Warner points out that Hales & Warner is not an employee of CPB; rather, Hales & Warner is an independent contractor.

In Point VII, Hales & Warner points out that it has received a copy of Smiths' "Reply Brief of the Appellants to the Brief of Appellee CPB," and Hales & Warner points out a number of problems pertaining thereto, including the inappropriate raising of new issues by Smiths in their reply brief.

In conclusion, Hales & Warner requests that the court affirm the trial court's summary judgment order, and/or otherwise grant judgment in favor of Hales & Warner. Hales & Warner also requests an order striking the contents of various documents and new issues/arguments inappropriately asserted by Smiths.

## **V. ARGUMENT**

### **1. Hales & Warner Owed No Duty to Jason Smith**

The discussion in this point, (and in points 2, 3, 4, and 5 below), relate to Smiths' first "issue" presented for review.

Smiths have the burden of establishing that Hales & Warner owed Jason Smith a "duty" of care under the circumstances of this case. Weber v. Springville City, 725 P.2d 1360, 1363-1368 (Utah 1986). Further, Smiths' have the burden of establishing the "retained control" exception to the general rule of non-liability of general contractors. See e.g. Thompson v. Jess, 1999 UT. 22, ¶¶ 13-26.) Plaintiffs have failed to meet their burden of establishing that Hales & Warner owed Plaintiff Jason Smith a duty.

Note, as the Utah Supreme Court points out in Thompson v. Jess:

We note that the term ‘retained control’ doctrine is somewhat of a misnomer. Under the standards announced herein, a duty of care is imposed if the [general contractor] asserts affirmative control over or actually participates actively in the manner of performance of the [sub]contracted work. ‘Retained,’ to the extent the word implies placidity or non-action, is inapt.”

See id. at ¶¶ 13-22, n.3 (brackets added)..

A. **The Standard Set Forth in Thompson v. Jess as to the “Retained Control” Exception Requires That Hales & Warner Affirmatively Took Control Over the “Injury-Causing Aspect” of Jason Smith’s Work.**

In Appellant/Plaintiff Smith’s Brief, Smiths agree, (as they agreed in the trial court below), that Thompson v. Jess, 1999 Utah 22, sets the standard as to the “retained control” exception to the general rule of non-liability, and as to whether Hales & Warner owed Jason Smith a duty. (See Brief of Appellants, p. 19.) However, Smiths go on in their Brief to misstate the narrow standard pertaining to the “retained control” exception outlined in Thompson.

Smiths take a position that if Hales & Warner affirmatively took control over any aspect of the framing work, even though it was unrelated to the injury-causing aspect of Jason Smith’s work, then Hales & Warner owed Jason Smith a duty as to the Jason Smith’s injury.

However, contrary to Smiths’ position, the Utah Supreme Court in Thompson expressly states, (multiple times and in various ways), that the “retained control” exception requires the exertion of affirmative control over the method or operative detail of the “injury-causing aspect of the work.” Thompson, 1999 UT 22, at ¶¶ 15-26.

Because Thompson is directly on point and dispositive, Thompson will be reviewed in some detail. In Thompson, Connie Jess was the owner of four motels; and Jess purchased a

used steel pipe from AmeriKan Sanitation, which pipe “would fit vertically over an existing pipe stud” “for use as a sign post.” Id. at ¶3. When the pipe was delivered by Dennis Jensen and Trevor Thompson, (employees of AmeriKan Sanitation), Jess asked Jensen if he would install the pipe. Mr. Jensen agreed to do so, even though he was not equipped to erect it in the best manner. The Thompson Court points out:

... Jensen, who had hoisted similar pipes more than a hundred times before, determined on his own the manner and method of lifting and installing the pipe. ...

Id. at ¶4 (emphasis added). Thompson was injured during the installation of the pipe, and filed suit against Jess. Jess moved for summary judgment, arguing that:

... she did not direct or otherwise control the manner or method of installing the pipe, and therefore owed no duty of care to Thompson or Jensen to insure they raised the pipe safely . . . .

Id. at ¶7 (emphasis added). In Thompson, the Court went on to point out:

... Thompson argues that by requesting that he and Jensen erect the pipe when they were not obligated to do so, and by directing them to install the pipe over the existing pipe stub, Jess asserted control over the work and thereby assumed a duty of care to him to him under the “retained control” doctrine . . .

Id. at ¶8. (The Thompson Court found that these requests and direction did not impose a duty.)

The “Analysis” section of the Thompson decision begins by setting forth the general rule, stating:

Utah adheres to the general common law rule that “the employer of an independent contractor is not liable for physical harm caused to another by an act or omission of the contractor or his servants.” Restatement § 409; see Gleason v. Salt Lake City, 94 Utah 1, 16, 74 P.2d 1225, 1232 (1937) (noting applicability of said general rule and certain exceptions to it). This general rule recognizes that one who hires an independent contractor and does not participate in or control the manner in which the contractor’s work is performed owes no

duty of care concerning the safety of the manner or method of performance implemented. See W. Prosser & W. Keaton, The Law of Torts 409 (5<sup>th</sup> ed. 1984). The most commonly accepted reason for this rule is that, where the principal employer does not control the means of accomplishing the contracted work, the contractor “is the proper party to be charged with the responsibility for preventing the risk, and administering and distributing it.” Id.

Id. at ¶ 13.

As the Utah Supreme Court indicates in Thompson, this rule of nonliability also applies to situations where a general contractor hires a subcontractor. (See e.g. id. at ¶¶ 23-25.) Thus, Thompson sets the standard to be applied as to whether a general contractor (here Hales & Warner) owes a duty to an employee of a sub-subcontractor (here Jason Smith).

The Thompson Court goes on to indicate that there are “certain exceptions to the general rule of nonliability,” including the “retained control” doctrine. Id. at ¶ 13. The Court points out in Thompson that the “retained control” exception is a “narrow theory of liability” applicable in the unique circumstance where an employer (or general contractor) of an independent contractor (or subcontractor) exercises enough control “to give rise to a limited duty of care.” Id. at ¶ 15.

As to the “retained control” exception, the Thompson Court went on to adopt the standard that a principal retaining an independent contractor has no duty to the employees of the contractor, unless the principal has “actively participated,” but the Thompson Court states that “elaboration on the contours of the standard is needed, however.” Id. at ¶ 18 (emphasis added.).

In setting forth the contours of this standard, the Thompson Court expressly indicates on multiple occasions that the exertion of control must be over the injury-causing aspect of the work; and in this review below of the Thompson Court's elaboration of this standard, we underline some of these phrases indicating that the control has to be related to the part of the work that caused the injury.

Immediately after indicating that elaboration on the contours of the standard is needed, the Thompson Court states:

Under the "active participation" standard, a principal employer is subject to liability for injuries arising out of its independent contractor's work if the employer is actively involved in, or asserts control over, the manner of performance of the contracted work. See Conklin v. Cohen, 287 So. 2d 56, 60 (Fla. 1973) (holding that under "active participation" standard, principal employer must directly influence manner in which work is performed; no duty arises from "passive nonparticipation"). Such an assertion of control occurs, for example, when the principal employer directs that the contracted work be done by use of a certain mode or otherwise interferes with the means and methods by which the work is to be accomplished. See, e.g., Lewis v. N.J. Riebe Enterprises, Inc., 170 Ariz. 384, 825 P.2d 5, 7-8 (Ariz. 1992) (imposing liability where subcontractor's employee was injured as result of new, less safe method of work required by general contractor); Redinger v. Living, Inc., 689 S.W.2d 415, 418 (Tex. 1985) (imposing liability where subcontractor was ordered to operate backhoe dangerously close to plaintiff).

Id. at ¶ 19 (underlining added).

This Court will note that the above quoted language in Thompson includes cases addressing whether a duty was owed by a general contractor to an injured employee of the subcontractor. Id. The Thompson Court goes on to state:

... In other words, to have "actively participated" in the contracted work, a principal employer must have exercised affirmative control over the method or operative detail of that work. The degree of control necessary for

the creation of a legal duty must involve either the direct management of the means and methods of the independent contractor's activities or the provision of the specific equipment that caused the injury."

... [T]he principal employer must exert such control over the means utilized that the contractor cannot carry out the injury-causing aspect of the work in his or her own way.

Id. at ¶¶ 20, 21 (citations omitted, underlining added). This Court will note the underlined language indicating that the control has to be over the "injury-causing aspect of the work;" and such only makes sense for various obvious reasons. Among other things, causation (of injury) tied to the negligent behavior has always been a key element to negligence claims.

The Thompson Court goes on to discuss a case to illustrate "the requisite level of control over the contractor's work;" and this Court will note that this illustrative case involves a general contractor and an injured employee of a subcontractor. The Thompson Court states:

The requisite level of control over the contractor's work is well illustrated in Lewis, 825 P.2d at 7-8. There, the general contractor, Riebe, hired the subcontractor, Garges, to install a pitched roof constructed of beams and sheets of plywood nailed to the beams. After Garges had already put the plywood in place, Riebe's on-site superintendent told Garges the roof was improperly installed and ordered it redone, specifying the use of H-clips to secure the plywood. Pursuant to this instruction, Garges employees began removing the nails from each row of plywood, installing H-clips, and then renailing the plywood to the beams. Soon thereafter, however, Riebe's superintendent instructed the Garges employees to use a different, faster method of dislodging the plywood by banging it from underneath. Because this method resulted in plywood being dislodged faster than H-clips could be installed, numerous sheets of plywood were left lying loose on top of the beams. A Garges employee stepped on the loose plywood and fell through the roof, incurring serious injuries. See id.



Thus, in Lewis, the general contractor interfered with the subcontractor's method of performing the work and instructed that a quicker but less safe method be implemented. A worker was injured as a direct result of the dangerous condition created by the general contractor's method. The court concluded, on the basis of these facts, that the general contractor exercised sufficient control over the means used in performing the contracted work to subject it to retained control liability. See 825 P.2d at 14-15.

Id. at ¶¶ 22, 23, (underlining added). Again, this Court will note the language indicating that the injury was “a direct result” of the dangerous condition created by the control exerted by the general contractor. Thus, the Thompson Court's discussion of the Lewis case illustrates, and expressly states, the necessary causal link between the control exerted by the general contractor and the injury.

It is also important to note, as indicated in the Thompson Court's discussion of Lewis, that the Utah Supreme Court did not state that general contractor Riebe was liable merely because he had entered into a subcontract with a subcontractor (Garges) to do the framing work on that project. Further, in its discussion of Lewis, the Utah Supreme Court did not state that general contractor Reibe was liable merely because general contractor Reibe had an on-site superintendent.

Moreover, the Thompson Courts discussion of Lewis indicates that the general contractor was not liable due to the general contractor's on-site superintendent's first action of telling the subcontractor “Garges the roof was improperly installed and order[ing] it redone, specifying the use of H-clips to secure the plywood.” Id. at ¶ 22. The Thompson Court's discussion of Lewis indicates that the general contractor only became liable due to the second and “thereafter” action by general contractor “Reibe's

superintendent instruct[ing] the Garges employees to use a different” and “quicker but less safe method,” and the fact that the subcontractor’s “worker was injured as a direct result of the dangerous condition created by the general contractor’s method;” and it was only those additional facts, (i.e. of the general contractor’s exertion of affirmative control and direction that a less safe method be used, and injury as a direct result of that less safe method), that subjected the general contractor to liability Id. at ¶¶ 22, 23 (brackets added).

In concluding its analysis on the “retain control” exception, the Thompson Court applies the facts of that case to the standard enunciated, stating:

Applying these standards to the case at hand, we conclude that Jess did not actively participate in the manner in which Thompson and Jensen attempted to lift and install the steel pipe. After agreeing to erect the pipe, Jensen, not Jess, determined the method for bringing about the desired result. . . . Thompson’s injury was caused by the manner of performance, implemented by Jensen, over which Jess exercised no direction, control, or supervision. . . .

....

Thus, because Jess did not actively participate in or otherwise exercise affirmative control over the manner or method of performance utilized by Jensen and Thompson, she owed Thompson no duty of care under the retained control doctrine.

Id. at ¶¶ 24, 25.

Thus, as referenced above, the Thompson Court expressly and repeatedly states that the exerted control has to be over the injury causing aspect of the work in order for there to be liability. If a general contractor exerts control over another aspect of the work that did not cause injury, but did not exert control over the aspect of the work that did cause

injury, there is no liability.

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